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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABCR, DOCKET CENT 80-114-M
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH A/ O NO 13-01910-05001

ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , DOCKET CENT 80-121-M
PETI TI ONER A/ O NO 13-01160-05001

V. DOCKET CENT 80-141-M
A/ O NO 13-01848-05001

MAUDLI N CONSTRUCTI ON COVPANY, DOCKET CENT 80-142-M
RESPONDENT A/ O NO 13-01349-05001

CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NGS (Consol i dat ed)

DOCKET CENT 80-201-M

A/ O NO 13-01349-05001
DOCKET CENT 80- 30- M

A/ O NO 13-01802-05001

M nes: G ay County or Stellish Pit,
Solberg Pit, Cark Pit,
Mortvedt Pit and Nel son Pit

DECI SI ON

APPEARANCES:
El i ehue C. Brunson, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
United States Departnent of Labor, 911 Walnut Street, Room 2106
Kansas Cty, Mssouri 64106,
for the Petitioner

Stewart H M Lund, Esq.
P O Box 634, Wbster City, |owa 50595,
for the Respondent

Before: Judge Virgil E. Vai
I. Procedural Background

The above-captioned civil penalty proceedi ngs were brought
pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal Mne Safety and Heal th
Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. [00820(a) [hereinafter referred to as "the
Act"]. The proposals for penalties allege sixteen violations of
saf ety standards.

Pursuant to notice, a hearing on the nmerits was held in Fort
Dodge, lowa on May 20 and 21, 1980. Raynond C. Weston, Sr., Carl
L. Smith and Charles E. Peaton, federal mne inspectors,
testified on behalf of the petitioner. Edward David Ammala, a
supervisor for the Mne Safety and Heal th Admi ni stration
testified for the petitioner. Charles P. Becker and Harl an Von
Seggren testified on behalf of the respondent. The parties filed
post hearing briefs.
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I1. Stipulations

During the course of the hearing, the parties entered into
the follow ng stipul ations:

1. The mne inspectors who issued the citations were
enpl oyees of the Mne Safety and Health Adm nistration and
aut hori zed representati ves of the Secretary of Labor

2. The Admi nistrative Law Judge has jurisdiction of this
case pursuant to section 107 of the Act.

3. The proposed penalties would not adversely affect the
respondent's ability to continue in business.

4. The respondent is a nediumsized operator in the State
of |owa.

I11. Motions

Counsel for the Petitioner noved that the record be |eft
open after the hearing in order to allow himan opportunity to
submt a conputer printout sheet fromthe Ofice of Assessnents
showi ng respondent’'s record of past violations. The undersigned
ordered that the record was to be |left opened until such tinme as
respondent's counsel received a copy of the printout.

Respondent, in its post hearing brief, renewed its objection to

t he adm ssion of the conputer printout sheet on the grounds that
respondent did not have the opportunity to cross-exani ne

Wi tnesses as to the history or relevancy of the proposed exhibit.

Respondent' s objection is hereby sustained and the exhibit wll
not be admitted into evidence. Therefore, the penalties assessed
herein are based on the assunption that the respondent had no
history of any violations prior to the violations alleged in the
present cases.

On August 15, 1980, respondent filed a motion to strike
petitioner's post hearing briefs. Respondent clains that the
petitioner's late filing of the briefs has prejudiced the
respondent. | disagree. Respondent has failed to denonstrate
any prejudice. Therefore, its notion is denied and petitioner's
briefs and the argunments contai ned therein have been consi dered.

V. Settlenent Approvals

In the case of Secretary of Labor v. Cay County Hi ghway
Departnment, CENT 80-30-M Maudlin Construction Conpany, as the
| easee of the Stellish Pit, accepted the defense in this matter
This case involved three alleged violations. Respondent agreed
to, and has in fact already paid the proposed penalty of $32.00
for citation no. 176765. Citation Nos. 176766 and 176767 were
di smssed by the petitioner on the ground that the accuracy of
the test results could not be proven.

I n docket nunber CENT 80-114-M the respondent agreed to



affirmcitation no. 176800 and pay the proposed penalty in the
anount of $22.00.

The proposed settl enent agreenents are hereby approved by
t he under si gned.
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V. Discussion

The five remai ning cases involve four different mne sites,
the Mortvedt, Sol berg, Nelson and Clark Pits. The initial
i nspections at these pits took place between July 9, 1979 and
Sept enber 18, 1979.

CENT 80-141-M and CENT 80-114-M

Cases CENT 80-141-M and CENT 80-114-Minvol ve six citations
all alleging a violation of mandatory safety standard
56. 5-50. (FOOTNOTE 1) These citations, involving simlar issues of fact
and law, will be dealt with together.
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The follow ng issues pertain to citations nos. 175215, 175217,
175216, 175319, 175320 and 176783:

1. Did the testing procedures enployed by the nne
i nspectors in nmeasuring the noise levels conformto the
procedures, as set forth in 56.5-50(a), and

2. Wre the instrunents properly calibrated in order to
assure accurate noise | evel readings.

Respondent di sputes the accuracy of the testing procedures
used by the inspectors, attacking themin several ways. Only
respondent's first two argunments need to be exanmined in order to
reach a deci sion.

First, respondent argues that a sound |evel neter mnust be
used to check or convert the dosineter readi ngs. (Respondent's
brief at p. 4) Contrary to respondent’'s argunent, | have found
nothing in the Act that requires that sound | evel neters be used
in conjunction with dosinmeters. The applicable standard, found
at 30 CF.R 56.5-50(a), requires that a sound |l evel nmeter or a
dosineter with simlar accuracy be used in testing noise |evels.
VWil e respondent's expert, Harlan Von Seggren, testified that he
woul d not use a DuPont 376 dosineter alone for determ ning noise
| evel s, nothing in the record supports a conclusion that this
type of dosinmeter cannot be used to accurately determ ne noise
| evel s.

Secondl y, respondent alleges that the test results are
i naccurate due to the length of tinme between when the dosineters
were calibrated and when the tests were performed. Citations
175215, 175216 and 175217 were all issued on August 17, 1979 by
Raynmond Weston, Sr.. M. Weston testified that he calibrated the
instruments on July 20, 1979, a period of 27 days prior to the
i nspection (Tr. 39). Citations 175319, 175320 and 176783 were
i ssued on July 25, 1979 by Carl L. Smith. The dosinmeters used by
Smith were calibrated on July 6, 1979, 18 days prior to testing
(Tr. 220).

The inspectors testified that they had been instructed that
the dosinmeters were to be calibrated every 30 days and that the
i nstrunments should be calibrated prior to an inspection (Tr.
243). However, neither inspector felt that it was necessary to
calibrate the instrunents the day before or the day of the
i nspecti on.

Edward Ammal a, supervisory inspector for the western half of
lowa, stated that one of his duties as a supervisor is to review
the citations that have been issued. He stated that he checks
for any discrepancy between the sound | evel neter readi ngs and
the results of the dosineter tests. In doing so he clained that
he can tell by the dBA | evel approximately what the dosineter
reading will be (Tr. 268). He therefore concluded that the
dosineter readings in the citations in question were accurate.
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I find the testinony of respondent's expert to be nore credible
than that of the Petitioner's w tnesses. Harlan Von Seggren
stated that, in order to assure an accurate reading, a dosineter
nmust be calibrated i mediately prior to conducting the test (Tr.
153). According to M. Von Seggren, a dosineter is a very
sensitive piece of equipnent and can easily be affected by
t enper at ure changes, novenent and ot her outside influences. In
his opinion, the |lapse of tine between the calibration of the
instruments and the actual tests would invalidate the results.
Petitioner failed to offer any testinony to refute the statenents
of M. Von Seggren.

Petitioner's explanation for not calibrating the dosineters
closer to the time when the tests were going to be perfornmed was
that it takes approximately twenty mnutes to calibrate each

machine. | find this explanation unacceptable. Section 104 of
the Act requires that when a violation is found that a citation
must be issued and a penalty assessed. It is grossly unfair to

operators to subject themto testing procedures, the accuracy of
whi ch cannot be proven, in order for the inspectors to save tine.

The burden of proving the accuracy of test results is with the
Petitioner. The Petitioner having failed in his burden, the
citations are hereby vacated.

CENT 80-201- M

This case involves three citations. G tation Nos. 176795
and 176796 both allege a violation of nandatory safety standard
30 C.F.R 56.14-1. (FOOTNOTE 2) Citation No. 176797 all eges that
respondent viol ated mandatory safety standard 30 C. F. R
56.11-1. (FOOTNOTE 3)

At the conclusion of Petitioner's evidence, respondent noved
to dismss the citations on the ground that the governnent had
failed to establish a prima facie case. Respondent did not
present any evidence nor offer any testinony as to these

citations. At the time of the hearing, | reserved ny ruling on
respondent's notion until | had an opportunity to review the
record. Having done so, | conclude that respondent's notion to

di sm ss should be granted and the citations di sm ssed.

The only testinony offered by Petitioner was that of the
i nspector who issued the citations. The inspector could not
identify the photographs that he had allegedly taken and his
notes were contradictory (Tr. 319 and 326).

The issuance of a citation is insufficient to establish a
prima facie case. Petitioner having failed to offer any credible
testinmony to prove the existence of the alleged violations they
are hereby dism ssed.
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CENT 80-121-M

| ssues:

1. \Whether or not the front end | oader was equi pped with an
operative back up alarmand, if so,

2. Ddthis defect affect the safety of m ners.
Di scussi on

Citation 175313 all eges that respondent viol ated nandatory
safety standard 30 C F. R 56.9-2 (FOOINOTE 4) by failing to have an
operative back up alarmon a front end | oader

The uncontradicted testinony of Carl Smith, the inspector
who issued the citation, was that the front end | oader had been
equi pped with a back up alarm however, at the time of his
i nspection on July 9, 1979 it was inoperative.

Respondent contends that there was no viol ation, even though
the al armwas inoperative, because the alarmwas an additiona
safety feature installed by the respondent, which was not
required by the Act. | disagree. The fact that the al armwas
i noperative subjects the respondent to liability under 30 C.F. R
56.9-2, unless there is a showi ng that even though the al arm was
not working it would not affect the safety of respondent's
enpl oyees.

Wtnesses for both parties testified that the operator of
the | oader woul d not have a cl ear view of someone on the ground
(Tr. 334 and 355). Although the testinmony of the w tnesses
differed as to how far the view of the operator would be
obstructed, it is unrefuted that there was a blind spot. Based
on this fact and the testinmony of M. Smith that he observed
ot her enpl oyees working in the imediate vicinity, | find that a
violation did occur.

Penal ty

The likelihood of an injury resulting fromthis violation
was rempte since the | oading process was confined to a small area
and nost of the enployees in the |oading area would be in trucks.
However, if an accident were to occur it could be of a serious
nature. The respondent acted in good faith by trying to abate
the citation inmedi ately. For these reasons, | find that a
penalty of $40.00 is appropriate.
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CENT 80-142-M

Citation 176794 all eges that respondent violated 30 C F. R
56.12-8 (FOOTNOTE 5) by failing to provide a bushing on the conductor
where it entered the distribution box on a light. The
uncontradicted facts are that the wires were not equipped with a
bushi ng, but that they were insulated with tape. The power
source for the light was a portable generator, that in turn
received its power froma diesel engine (Tr. 358). Therefore,
there was never any reason for any enpl oyees to be in the
vicinity of the lightpole (Tr. 359).

I find that a violation did occur. Although respondent
argued that the tape elimnated any shock hazard, the standard
requi res that when wires pass through netal frames the hol es nust
be bushed.

Penal ty

I find that respondent’'s negligence and the gravity of the
viol ation were | ow based on the evidence presented that the wires
had been insulated. It appears there was only a slight chance of
anyone being injured since it was not necessary for anyone to be
near the light in order to turn it off or on. The respondent
promptly abated the citation. For the reasons stated herein,
reduce the proposed penalty and conclude that a penalty of $10.00
i s appropriate under the circunstances.

In citation no. 176799, the petitioner alleges a violation
of safety standard 30 C.F. R 56.4-18, (FOOINOTE 6) based on the
i nspector's statenment that oxygen cylinders were being stored in
the parts trailer where oil and grease containers were al so kept
(Tr. 313). According to Mne Inspector Carl Smith, this condition
created a fire hazard and would add to the intensity of a fire if
one were to occur.

I find that a violation did occur. Respondent did not deny
that the oxygen was being stored in the sane trailer containing
oil and gas cans. Respondent contends that a citation should not
have been issued since the oxygen bottles were i mediately
renoved. The Act provides that when a violation is found to have
occurred that a citation is to be issued. Respondent's pronptness
in abating the citation goes to the conpany's good faith. Also,
the fact that the trailer was parked away fromthe area where the
enpl oyees were working and that they would only be in the area to
pi ck up supplies goes to the gravity of the violation and not to
whet her a violation did in fact occur.
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Penal ty

Under the circunstances, as set forth above, | find that a
penalty of $28.00 is appropriate.

Fi ndi ngs of Fact

1. Seventeen citations were issued to the respondent
between July 9, 1979 and Septenber 18, 1979 at five different
mne sites. These facts al one do not constitute harassnment on the
part of MSHA, as alleged by the respondent.

2. Petitioner failed to prove the accuracy of the dosineter
readi ngs.

3. Petitioner failed to establish a prima facie case with
regard to the three citations contained i n Docket No. CENT
80-201-M Therefore, respondent's notion to dism ss is granted.

4. The back-up alarmon the front end | oader was
i noperative. This presented a safety hazard for enpl oyees worki ng
in the area, since the operator would be unable to see persons
wal ki ng behi nd the | oader.

5. The hole in the conductor box was not bushed as required
by mandatory safety standard 30 C.F. R 56.12-8.

6. Oxygen cylinders were being stored in the sane trailer
as containers of oil and grease thus presenting a fire hazard.

ORDER

Case Citation No. Assessnent
CENT 80-30-M 176765 $ 32.00
CENT 80-114-M 176800 $ 22.00
CENT 80-121-M 175313 $ 40.00
CENT 80-142-M 176794 $ 10.00
176799 $ 28.00

$ 132.00

It is hereby ORDERED that Respondent pay the penalties
totaling $ 132.00 within thirty (30) days fromthe date of this
deci si on.

Virgil E. Vai
Admi ni strative Law Judge

~FOOTNOTE_ONE

1 56.5-50. Mandatory. (a) No enployee shall be permitted
an exposure to noise in excess of that specified in the table
bel ow. Noise | evel neasurenents shall be made using a sound
| evel meter neeting specifications for type 2 meters contained in
American National Standards Institute (ANSI) Standard S1.4-1971



"Ceneral Purpose Sound Level Meters," approved April 27, 1971

whi ch i s hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof,
or by a dosineter with simlar accuracy. This publication may be
obtained fromthe American National Standards Institute, Inc.
1430 Broadway, New York, New York 10018, may be examined in any
Metal and Nonnetal M ne Health and Safety District or Subdistrict
Ofice of the Mne Safety and Health Admi nistration

PERM SSI BLE NO SE EXPOSURES

Dur ation per day, Sound | evel dBA,
hours of exposure: sl ow response

90
92
95
97
100
-1/2 102
105
1/ 2 110
1/4 or |ess 115

PFEPNWKMOO

No exposure shall exceed 115 dBA. Inpact or inpulsive
noi ses shall not exceed 140 dB, peak sound pressure |level. Note.
VWhen the daily noi se exposure is conmposed of two or nore periods
of noi se exposure at different |evels, their conbined effect
shal | be considered rather than the individual effect of each

If the sumCL +C . . . Cn
T1 T2 Tn

then the m xed exposure shall be considered to exceed
t he perm ssible exposure. Cn indicates the total tinme of
exposure at a specified noise level, and Tn indicates the tota
time of exposure permtted at that level. Interpolation between
tabul at ed val ues may be determ ned by the follow ng formla:

Log T = 6.322-0.0602 SL
Were T is the tine in hours and SL is the sound | evel in dBA

~FOOTNOTE_TWOD

2 56.14-1. Mandatory. Cears; sprockets; chains; drive,
head, tail, and takeup pulleys; flywheels; couplings; shafts;
sawbl ades; fan inlets; and simlar exposed noving machi ne parts
whi ch may be contacted by persons, and which may cause injury to
persons, shall be guarded.

~FOOTNOTE_THREE
3 56.11-1. Mandatory. Safe neans of access shall be
provi ded and maintained to all working places.

~FOOTNOTE_FQOUR
4 56.9-2 Mandatory. Equi pnent defects affecting safety
shal |l be corrected before the equi pnent is used.



~FOOTNOTE_FI VE

5 56.12-8 Mandatory. Power wires and cabl es shall be
i nsul ated adequately where they pass into or out of electrical
conpartnents. Cables shall enter netal franes of notors, splice
boxes, and el ectrical compartments only through proper fittings.
VWhen insul ated wires, other than cables, pass through netal
franes, the holes shall be substantially bushed with insul ated
bushi ngs [ Section 56.12-8 nade nandatory and revised at 42 FR
29420, June 8, 1977, effective July 8, 1977].

~FOOTNOTE_SI X
6 56.4-18 Mandatory. Oxygen cylinders shall not be stored
in roonms or areas used or designated for oil or grease storage.



